

The New Bylaws as from November 28 2018

Carol Prest
CAROL PREST

BYLAWS OF THE Africa Great Lakes Networking Foundation

These bylaws replace the constitution adopted in 2010 as was set up by the Society Act.

The easiest way that we had set up our bylaws was to adopt the model bylaws as a set, without any changes. The model bylaws were intended to provide a sample framework of the basic procedural rules for the convenience, with all the provisions suitable for our society, adopting the entire set of bylaws as was, which has not been amended since.

Table of Contents

BYLAWS.....	3
Part 1 - Interpretation	4
Part 2 - Membership.....	4
Duties of the members	5
Transition of membership.....	5
Expulsion of a member	6
Part 3- Meeting of members	6
Timing of meetings	6
Notice of meetings.....	6
Part 4 - Proceedings at general meetings.....	7
Quorum requirements.....	7
Voting procedures.....	8
Chapters	9
Local chapter	9
Part 5 - Directors and officers	9
Powers of the directors.....	9
Number of officers and directors	10
Nominations to the board of directors.....	10
Terms of directors and their replacement.....	11
Removal of directors/board members.....	12
Conflict of interest	12
Meeting of directors	13
Quorum of directors.....	14
Directors' committees	14
Non-profit.....	14
Directors and conflict of interest.....	15
Part 6 - Duties of officers	15
Part 7 - Senior manager	16
Part 8 - Seal.....	16
Part 9 - Records keeping.....	16
Corporate records	16
Financial records	16
Inspection and disclosure of records.....	16
Part 10 - Borrowing	17
Part 11 - Auditor.....	17
Part 12 - Notice to members.....	17
Part 13 - Bylaws.....	18
Part 14 - Winding up	18

BYLAWS

The purposes after the transition of the society are to be changed, upgraded and or removed to read:

During 2018 annual general meeting, the following were adopted: Offer support, services and referrals to the newcomers and refugees to smoothly integrate into the Canadian Society, we network, collaborate and partner with other like-minded organizations and individuals in urban, rural, remote areas, slums, and refugee camps, locally and internationally to source resources for informal/self-directed learning through conversation, participation and learning via knowledge creation process, for the success of the society that is linked to the well-being of each and every citizen. We undertake Research services to inform action and produce knowledge, carry out surveys in order to give information, advocacy with the aim to influence decisions within political, economic, social systems and institutions on barriers faced by communities, especially, women, young people, refugees dealing with trauma/cultural shock, survivors of FGM, child soldiers, sexual exploitation of children and youth, human trafficking, environment care/protection and other community social development programs to reach full potential (globally), At-Risk youth, Early pregnancy and young single mothers, Children from single parents (Moms), School drop-outs, LGBTQ community, homeless people and those with disability challenges, Mental Health and addiction facing marginalization, social exclusion, their safety, shelter and basic necessities, promotion of fundamental human rights for dignity, sense of belonging and some purpose in life, encouraging Youth activism; engagement, participation in decision-making process and promotion of YOUTH VOICE.

To expand our organization by opening Chapters, we strive to help youth acquire “work experience and intervention solutions” (WEIS) to observe and practice employability skills, job placement assistance/services for job seekers and resume writing. Arts appreciation, creativity, imagination and expression, cultural development and environmental programs/activities and social events, with a Harambecouver Multicultural annual Parade/Festivals (HCM events). Long-term goals: “African Friendship ONE STOP YOUTH RESOURCE CENTER”, Youth/Women Shelter, Thrift store, and safe shelters for women and girls in Africa and Haiti.

Programs and activities include but not limited to:

Informal Education – to inclusively promote and protect history, cultures, restorative justice - approach to justice, peacebuilding and conflict resolution, anti-discrimination, anti-racism, young people needing additional support due to risk of involvement in gang activity – working with a multi-disciplinary team of experts and professionals who offer support and stability to children and non-offending family members under one roof, create awareness, mentoring, arts, culture, information dissemination, Hip Hop, women empowerment to believe in themselves, “Youth leadership, capacity building, life skills based education, economic empowerment, social education for social intervention, promoting social welfare, building bridges, upgrading living standard and improve quality of life. We ensure all individuals’ fulfillment of their rights, in a nutshell, it’s an objective to optimize the processes of socialization, working with minority, vulnerable population including the Indigenous peoples towards reconciliation. We organize, encourage and promote Mother tongue (Language) provide food/b/fast pancake to the homeless,

traditional regalia, and masquerade, including Athletics – Running/Races, and sports events for youth as a tool for development and peace, increasing girls’ participation in soccer, hair fashion shows, climate change dialogue “Youth skills acquisition and economic empowerment, summer Jobs/camps, round-table conversations, storytelling, drums, traditional dance for Mental health, after school program, physical literacy, and health social interactions, organizing local and international Youth Assemblies, Youth Summits, Youth Conferences, Volunteer opportunities, exchange programs and ” Students/University Classes etc.

Here, set forth, in numbered clauses, are the bylaws providing for the matters referred to in the Societies Act of the Province of British Columbia and any other bylaws.

Part 1 – Interpretation

1. In these bylaws, unless the context otherwise requires:
 - a). “directors” means the directors of the society for the time being;
 - b). “officer term” means the time between the first executive meeting following an annual general meeting and the first executive meeting immediately following the annual general meeting after the expiration of the term set within the bylaws;
 - c). “registered address” of a member means the address as recorded in the register of members;
 - d). “secretary general” of the society refers to the officer occupying the position of secretary general;
 - e). “senior manager” has the meaning set out in the Societies Act and includes the officers of the society;
 - f). “Societies Act” means the Societies Act of British Columbia as amended from time to time in force, and includes any successor legislation thereto;
 - g). “society” refers to the Africa Great Lakes Networking foundation (AGL); and
 - h). “term” means the time between an annual general meeting and the annual general meeting two years following.
2. The definitions in the Societies Act on the date these bylaws become effective apply to these bylaws.
3. Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa; and words importing any gender include all genders.

Part 2-Membership

4. The members of the society are non-profit organizations who have become members in accordance with these bylaws and the policies of the society.

5. Any British Columbia non-profit organization subscribing to the mission, purposes and bylaws of the society; same programs, activities and events as part of its operations; and meeting such other criteria as may be adopted by the directors from time to time; may apply for partnership in the society. The application will be assessed by the directors who will give a recommendations, and, upon acceptance by ordinary resolution of the members, the applicant shall become a member.

6. Community members interested to join from British Columbia, its environs and beyond are classified as a “voting member” or an “associate member” under the pre-transition bylaws of the society and shall be confirmed as members. Networking with Chapters on different education programs, who are not incorporated in British Columbia to be members, currying the name as “Africa Great Lakes – then their Countries”. Duties of the members

Duties of the members

7. Every member shall uphold the Constitution and comply with these bylaws, procedures and the policies of the society.

8. The amount of the annual membership dues (if any) shall be determined at the annual general meeting or an extraordinary general meeting of the society.

9. All members shall inform the society in writing of their up-to-date physical address and their email address, their phone numbers, for the purposes of receiving notices from the society. This is an on-going obligation.

10. All members are expected to:

Complete the Membership Renewal Form, every two years (if any).

Transition of membership

11. A member will cease to be a member of the society:

- a. by delivery of the member’s resignation in writing to the secretary of the society or delivering it to the address of the society;
- b. on dissolution;
- c. on being expelled; or
- d. on having been a member not in good standing for a period of three months.

12. All members are in good standing except a member who has failed to complete and return to the secretary or delivering to the address of the society the Members’ (if any) and/or the Membership Renewal Form, every two years (if any) and/or pay the annual membership dues (if any).

Expulsion of a member/contactors and volunteers

13. A member may be expelled by special resolution of the members passed at a general meeting.

14. The notice of special resolution for expulsion shall be accompanied by a brief statement of the reason(s) for the proposed expulsion.

15. The member who is the subject of the proposed resolution for expulsion shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the general meeting before the special resolution is put to a vote.

Part 3 - Meeting of members

Timing of meetings

16. General meetings of the society shall be held at such time and place, in accordance with the Societies Act, as the directors decide.

17. Every general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, is an extraordinary general meeting.

18. The directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.

19. An annual general meeting shall be held at least once each calendar year, preferably June -6th of each year, unless all members give their consent to all items of business, in which case it need not be held.

20. Members of the society may requisition the directors to call a general meeting within 60 days for the purposes stated therein if 10% of the members sign the requisition.

Notice of meetings

Notice of a general meeting shall specify the place, the day, and the hour of meeting.

22. Notice of a general meeting will take place no less than 14 days, and no more than 60 days, from the meeting.

23. Notice of a general meeting will include:

- a). the minutes of any previous general meetings which have not been approved by members;
- b). the text of any special resolution to be considered at the meeting; and
- c). in the case of special business, the general nature of that business.

24. Notice must be provided in writing and may be provided by email, standard mail, or personal delivery.

25. The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of a notice by, any of the members entitled to receive notice, does not invalidate any of the proceedings at that meeting.

Part 4 - Proceedings at general meeting

26. One of both of the President who is the co-chairs or, in the absence of both, one of the other directors present shall preside as chairperson(s) of a general meeting

27. At a general meeting, if, after fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, no director(s) is present or willing to chair, the members shall choose one of their number to be chairperson

28. If the notice of meeting or the members so permit, any member entitled to attend the general meeting may participate in such meeting by teleconference, videoconference or any other electronic means that permit all participants to communicate adequately with each other during the meeting, if the society, at the discretion of the Board, makes such means available. A member so participating in a meeting is deemed to be present at the meeting

29. Special business is:

- a. all business at an extraordinary general meeting except the adoption of rules of order;
- b. all business that is transacted at an annual general meeting, except:
 - i. the adoption of rules of order;
 - ii. the report of the directors;
 - iii. the report of the Auditor, if any;
 - iv. the consideration of the financial statements;
 - v. the appointment of the Auditor, if required;
 - vi. the election of directors; and
 - vii. such other business as, under these bylaws, ought to be transacted at an annual general meeting, or business which is brought under consideration by the report of the directors issued with the notice convening the meeting.

30. Members of the society will propose an item for consideration at an annual general meeting if 50 % of the members sign the proposal, and if the proposal is received by the society's secretary general at least seven days before notice of the annual general meeting is sent out.

Quorum requirements

31. No business, other than the election of a chair(s), adjournment or termination of the meeting, shall be conducted at a general meeting at a time when a quorum is not present

32. If at any time during a general meeting there ceases to be a quorum present, business then in progress shall be suspended until there is a quorum present or the meeting is adjourned or terminated

33. A quorum is 30% of the members in good standing.

34. If within 30 minutes from the time appointed for a member's meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting shall stand adjourned to the same day in the following two weeks, same time, via electronic means and/or teleconference and if, at the adjourned meeting, a quorum is not present within thirty minutes from the time appointed for the meeting, the members present shall constitute a quorum.

35. A general meeting may be adjourned from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at an adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place

36. It is not necessary to give notice of adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned general meeting.

Voting procedures

37. No resolution proposed at a general meeting need be seconded, and the chairperson of a meeting may move or propose a resolution.

38. In the case of an equality of votes, the chairperson shall not have a casting or second vote, and the proposed resolution shall not pass.

39. A member votes, entitled to speak and vote in all other respects, exercise the rights as member, for all purposes with respect to a meeting of the society

40. A member, who joined to volunteer with the Society and in good standing, from the indigenous Peoples, People of African Descent or and minority groups with refugee/newcomers, those living with chronic disease and have lived experiences, those with disability, drums, youth Environmental knowledge, storytelling, women, seniors and LGBTQ community, will be appreciated and acknowledged.

41. A member in good standing is entitled to only one vote.

42. Voting may be by show of hands, mail or any other means of communication deemed appropriate by the chairperson of the meeting, including by electronic mail or other electronic means, or any combination of such means. Long term goal will be that "The directors establish rules for the conduct of meetings whereby members vote by electronic means, including online voting through Society website, and or emails, provided such rules allow members reasonable access to voting ensuring security, confidentiality, and integrity of the voting process.

If a vote at a meeting is held by electronic means, a member may request a paper ballot, in accordance with the process set out in the notice of the general meeting sent to the members, in which case the Society shall mail a paper ballot to such member and such member may vote by completing the ballot form received in accordance with all relevant instructions delivered in connection therewith. In the event that a member submits a paper ballot in addition to the member's electronic vote, the member's paper ballot will not be counted.

Chapters

A Local Chapter

43. i. Voting by proxy is not permitted.
- ii. Africa Great Lakes Networking Society (AGL) is a local chapter that has a group of members who live and work in the Greater Vancouver, its environs, who have organized themselves to promote the goals of the society. We are open to the board membership who live out of BC. AGL Success will be looking at growing by creating non-profit chapters and affiliates in other geographic areas, including other countries. AGL will organize geographically into chapters that share the name a, trademarks with local, international branches in multiple areas national, regional or global that share the mission, finding new members, and other day-to-day operations. The chapter organizations will be established under the umbrella of Africa Great Lakes Networking Society as the parent organization after we transition into the new bylaw, with their own board, and operating independently, while remaining their own entity. AGL will want to have more say in the way the community program and activities are handled, and will want to help appoint a board of directors, exercising same voting process and rights. Invited guests are authorized at a general meeting, are entitled to participate in debate but not to vote.

Part 5 - Directors and officers

Powers of the directors

45. The directors: The Society has the Founder – Who the members appointed as CEO who is also life member of the society. With Indigenous representation who will be the Co-CEO at all times, with five positions of President, Vice President, General Secretary, Assistant Secretary and Vice President Finance. (five voting members and the two CEO's who are non-voting members) will exercise all such powers, do all such acts and things as the society may exercise and do, which are not by these bylaws or by statute or otherwise, lawfully directed or required to be exercised or done by the society in a general meeting, but subject, nevertheless, to provisions of:
- a. all laws affecting the society;
 - b. these bylaws; and
 - c. rules, not being inconsistent with these bylaws, which are made from time to time by the society in a general meeting

46. No rule made by the society in a general meeting invalidates a prior act of the directors that would have been valid if that rule had not been made

47. All directors shall adhere to the procedures and policies, set by the directors, defining their role, code of conduct and requirements concerning confidentiality.

Number of officers and directors

48. The President, Vice President, General Secretary, Asst. secretary and Treasurer (Vice President Finance), shall be the officers of the society

49. An officer must be a director and ceases to be an officer on ceasing to be a director

50. The society shall have two CEO officers, five directors, elected by the members at a general meeting, in accordance with the following rules:

- a. Five of the seven directors shall be deemed to be associated and able to effectively represent the Africa Great Lakes Networking Foundation Society of British Columbia; and the five directors shall have come from the communities, representing the Indigenous, People of African Descent, the minority, LGBTQ, Refugees, newcomers with lived experiences, youth/women, those living with disability, those living with chronic diseases and at risk youth
- b. The society's employees or independent contractors can serve as directors, with the membership's appointment. A majority of the directors of a society must not receive or be entitled to receive remuneration from the society under contracts of employment or contracts for services.

51. The society's employees or independent contractors can serve as directors. A majority of the directors of a society must not receive or be entitled to receive remuneration from the society under contracts of employment or contracts for services.

Nominations to the board of directors

52. Each year prior to the annual general meeting, the directors shall convene, or act as, a Nominating Committee to compile a slate of nominees for election to the Board of directors to fill all vacant positions

53. The Nominating Committee shall ensure that all nominees to the Board of directors qualify for one of the available seats as set out in these bylaws and the Societies Act, and shall approve a shortlist of the best candidates according to criteria approved by the Board of directors

54. In order to be eligible for election to the Board, an individual must:

- a. fulfill all Societies Act qualifications to be a director, and must not be found by any court to be incapable of managing the individual's own affairs; not be an undischarged bankrupt; not be convicted of an offence in connection with the promotion, formation or management of a corporation or unincorporated entity, or of an offence involving fraud;

- b. be an authorized representative of a member of the society and have written confirmation of such;
- c. submit an application form - which includes a written statement summarizing such individual's qualifications, experience, and involvement in the mission of the society;
- d. consent in writing to run for the Board of directors, and agree to act in the best interests of the society and in furtherance of its mission; and
- e. be nominated by the Nominating Committee.

55. Only individuals who consent in writing and who are nominated by the Nominating Committee shall be eligible for election to the Board of directors.

56. Nominees shall make their best effort to be physically present at the election meeting.

57. A nominee who cannot be physically present at the election meeting shall make arrangements to have a member read to the membership the written statement contained within their application.

Terms of directors and their replacement

58. Directors shall be elected for a two-year term and must retire from office at the second annual general meeting after their election, when their successors shall be elected.

59. Any director retiring from office at an annual general meeting shall be eligible to stand for re-election at that annual general meeting.

60. A director shall inform the society immediately if they are no longer eligible to serve as a director.

61. A director shall resign immediately if they no longer fulfill all the Societies Act qualifications to be a director.

62. Should a director cease being an authorized representative of the member of the society they represented at the time of their most recent election, that director shall cease being a director at the convening of the annual general meeting, first occurring after receipt by the secretary of notice that the director has ceased being one of its authorized representatives. There is nothing to prevent the former director seeking election as a director at that or a subsequent annual general meeting, or once again being appointed as a director, after their ceasing to be a director.

63. Election procedures at the annual general meeting shall be determined by the members present.

64. Officers will be elected by the directors from their number, at a meeting of the directors after the annual general meeting.

65. Officers shall serve until the next annual general meeting

66. If there is a director vacancy on the Board, the Nominating Committee may propose to the Board at its next meeting a shortlist of nominees that qualify for the available seat(s) as set out in these bylaws, and the directors may elect a director from those nominees to fill the vacancy. The director so elected shall hold office for the unexpired term.

67. If there is vacancy for an officer, the directors may elect a director to fill the position, and a director so elected shall hold office until the next annual general meeting.

68. No act or proceeding of the directors is invalid only by reason of there being fewer than the prescribed number of directors currently in office.

Removal of directors

69. A director may be removed before the expiration of such person's term by a special resolution of the members, or a three-quarters vote of the directors

70. A director subject to a vote for removal by the members or directors shall:

- a. be given at least 72 hour notice of the meeting where the vote will take place, and a brief description of the reason for the proposed removal; and
- b. be given an opportunity to provide a defence prior to the vote being taken.

Board members

Conflicts of Interest by Boards of Directors:

Board members/contactors and volunteers will sign conflict of interest policy statements. If a board member has a conflict of interest, he may be kicked off the board and possibly sued, if a board member has a sexual relationship with an employee/volunteer, or if he is taking business away from the organization and giving it to others or owning it. The board member who attempt to profit may be insider trading; it will be illegal as well as being a conflict of interest, requirement of the board members to disclose potential conflicts of interest.

Contactors as event planners/volunteers who will carry out the programs, activities and or events, will surrender all receipts for the money received from AGL within two weeks after the completion of the activities, and or event, failure to, will result into contactors not being offered any more contacts in the future or and even sued. Contractors not to charge way more than what the event is estimated at, before the start of the event all contract paper work will be signed with the estimated funding and 50% payment offered between the start of the event to the finish, then the balance be paid in 7 days after. An estimate should be the contractor's best professional assessment, including the cost of hiring any subcontractors, the price of materials, and any other labor involved, the contactor will share information of any In-kind contributions received on behalf of the of the event.

Getting an estimate from a contractor is different from getting a quote. A quote will be an offer to enter into a contract; it should be the exact amount that a particular event/program cost, without much “wiggle room.” Ideally, both quotes and estimates will be put into writing, no any contractor will intentionally be allowed to avoid doing so. Getting an estimate from a contractor is different from getting a quote. Any extra cost should be communicated to the organization before it’s approved and or paid out by the contractor. No contractor/volunteer will co-own the event, the parade to be called an annual “Harambercouver Multicultural Carnival/Parade (HCM).

Meeting of directors

71. The directors shall meet a minimum of five times per year. A director may at any time, and the secretary general on the request of a director shall convene a meeting of the directors.

72. The directors may:

- a. meet together at such times and places as they think fit for the dispatch of business; and
- b. hold meetings, in whole or in part, by telephone or other communications medium if all directors participating in the meeting, whether by telephone, by other communications medium or in person, are able to communicate with each other.

73. The following rules apply to meetings of the directors:

- a. the directors may, by three-quarters majority, adopt Rules of Order governing their meetings, the meetings of committees, and the procedure by which decisions shall be made, provided that such Rules are not inconsistent with these bylaws;
- b. in the absence of adopted Rules of Order, resolutions arising at any meeting of the directors or committee of directors shall be decided by a simple majority of votes;
- c. the Vice President (co-chairs) shall be chairperson(s) of all meetings of the directors unless the directors decide otherwise;
- d. no resolution proposed at a meeting of directors or committee of directors need be seconded, and the chairperson(s) of a meeting may move or propose a resolution;
- e. a resolution consented to in writing or email by all the directors and placed with the minutes of the directors, is as valid and effective as if regularly passed at a meeting of directors;
- f. if a vote is taken and the result is a tie, the chairperson(s) does not have a second or casting vote; and
- g. senior managers and contractors may, with the consent of the directors, attend at and participate in meetings of the directors, but shall not have a vote unless they are also directors

74. A newly appointed or elected director or directors shall be notified of the first meeting of the directors following their appointment or election but failure to notify such new directors shall not void the meeting, if a quorum is present

75. A director, who may be absent temporarily from British Columbia, may send or deliver to the address of the society a waiver of notice, which may be by letter or email, of any meeting of the directors and may, at any time, withdraw the waiver, and until the waiver is withdrawn:

- a. no notice of meetings of directors shall be sent to that director; and
- b. any and all meetings of the directors of the society, notice of which has not been given to that director shall, if a quorum of the directors is present, be valid and effective.

Quorum of directors

76. The quorum for any meeting of the directors shall be a simple majority of the directors then in office

77. Directors participating by telephone, telephone conference call, or other communications medium shall be considered part of the quorum.

Directors' committees

78. Each and every standing committee shall contain not less than one director who shall, unless otherwise provided in the terms of reference established for the standing committee by the Board, chair the committee and, regardless, each standing committee shall be chaired by the authorized representative of a member

79. The directors may delegate any, but not all, of their powers to committees consisting of such persons as they see fit, and may name the committee

80. A committee so formed in the exercise of the powers so delegated shall conform to any rules that may from time to time be imposed on it by the directors, and shall report every act or thing done in exercise of those powers to the directors

81. Subject to directions from the Board, the committee shall determine its own procedure

82. The committee shall meet and adjourn as it deems appropriate.

Non-profit

83. The purposes of the society shall be carried out without purpose of gain for its members, and any profits or other accretions to the society shall be used for promoting its purposes

84. Directors or officers may be remunerated for being or acting as such, under policy as may be adopted by the directors from time to time

85. Directors or officers may be reimbursed for all expenses necessarily and reasonably incurred while engaged with the society

86. The society may, subject to the Act, pay remuneration to a director for services provided by the director to the society in another capacity.

Directors and conflict of interest

87. A director who has a direct or indirect interest in a proposed contract or transaction of the society, or a matter for consideration by the directors, shall disclose promptly and fully the nature and extent of their interest to the other directors, remove themselves from discussion and otherwise comply with the relevant provisions of the Societies Act.

Part 6 - Duties of officers

88. All officers shall adhere to the policies, set by the directors, defining their role

89. The Vice President (co-chairs) shall preside at all meetings of the society and of the directors, unless the members or directors decide otherwise

The secretary shall:

- a. conduct the correspondence of the society;
- b. issue notice of meetings of the society and of directors;
- c. keep minutes of all meetings of the society and of directors;
- d. have custody of all records and documents of the society except those required to be kept by the treasurer;
- e. have custody of the common seal of the society; and
- f. maintain the register of members and a record of the authorized representative(s) of each member

91. The treasurer shall:

- a. keep such financial records, including books of account, as are necessary to comply with the Societies Act; and
- b. render financial statements to the directors, members and others when required

92. The offices of secretary and treasurer may be held by one person who shall be known as the secretary-treasurer

93. The offices of secretary and/or treasurer may be held by an employee

94. The secretary and/or treasurer may delegate duties to the staff of the society, provided the secretary maintains oversight and control

95. Other officers, if any, shall perform such duties as the members may decide

96. The directors, or members, may add additional duties to any director or officer or transfer duties among directors or officers.

97. In the absence of the secretary from a meeting, the directors shall appoint another person to act as secretary at that meeting.

Part 7 - Senior manager

98. In addition to the officers, the directors may appoint one or more senior managers of the society to exercise the directors' authority to manage the activities or internal affairs of the society as a whole, in accordance with the Societies Act.

Part 8 – Seal

99. The directors may provide a common seal for the society and they shall have power from time to time to destroy it and substitute a new seal in place of it.

100. The common seal shall be affixed only when authorized by a resolution of the directors and then only in the presence of the persons prescribed in the resolution or, if no persons are prescribed, in the presence of the Co-Chair and secretary or Co-chair and secretary-treasurer.

Part 9 - Records keeping

Corporate records

101. The directors of the society shall keep the records of the society as required by the Act.

Financial records

102. The directors, on behalf of the society, shall keep proper accounting records in respect of all financial or other transactions, and without limiting the foregoing, shall keep records of:

- a. all money received and disbursed by the society and the manner in which respect of which the receipt and disbursement took place;
- b. every asset and liability of the society; and
- c. every other transaction affecting the financial position of the society

Inspection and disclosure of records

103. A member of the society is entitled, on providing at least 14 days' written notice to the society, to inspect the following records of the society at the address of the society during normal business hours:

- a. the society's certificate of incorporation, and any other certificates or records furnished to the society by the Registrar;
- b. the Constitution and these bylaws;
- c. the statement of directors and registered office of the society;

- d. copies of orders made by any court, tribunal or government body in respect of the society;
- e. the register of directors;
- f. the register of members;
- g. the written consents of the directors to serve as such, and their resignations;
- h. the disclosure of a director or senior manager regarding a conflict of interest;
- i. minutes of general meetings of the society;
- j. resolutions of the members passed in writing; and
- k. the annual financial statements of the society, and any auditor's reports thereon.

A member of the society may not inspect any other records of the society except as required by law or permitted by resolution of the directors

Part 10 - Borrowing

104. In order to carry out the purposes of the society the directors may, on behalf of and in the name of the society, raise or secure the payment or repayment of money in such manner they decide and in particular, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, by the issue of debentures

105. The members may, by special resolution, restrict the borrowing power of the directors but a restriction so imposed expires at the next annual general meeting.

Part 11 – Auditor

106. This part will apply only where AGL requires the auditor, or when resolves, to have an Auditor.

107. An Auditor may be removed by ordinary resolution, if he was hired

108. An Auditor shall be informed forthwith, in writing, of appointment or removal

109. No director and no employee of the society shall be Auditor

110. The Auditor may attend general meetings.

Part 12 - Notice to members

111. A notice may be given to a member either personally or by mail or by email to the member at the member's registered address or current email address

112. Notice of a general meeting shall be given to:

- a. every member shown on the register of members on the day notice is given; and
- b. the Auditor, if Part 10 applies.

Part 13 - Bylaws

113. Any member of the society is entitled to a copy of the Constitution and bylaws upon request.

114. These bylaws shall not be altered or added to except by special resolution.

Part 14 - Winding up

115. In the event of the winding up and dissolution of the society, any of its funds and assets of the society remaining after the satisfaction of its debts and liabilities, shall be paid, transferred or delivered to such one or more recognized charitable organizations or charitable foundations in British Columbia, concerned with social problems or having purposes similar to those of this society, as shall be determined by resolution of a general meeting at the time of winding up and dissolution; and in the event that effect cannot be given to the foregoing provisions, then such funds and assets shall be paid, transferred or delivered to trustees on trust for a charitable purpose.